
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Governance and Human Resources 

Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 
 
 

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE A 

 
Members of Licensing Sub Committee A are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on 27 November 2017 at 6.30 pm. 
 
 
Yinka Owa 
Director of Law and Governance 
 
 

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall 

Tel : 020 7527 3068 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 17 November 2017 

 
 
Membership Substitute 
 
Councillor Gary Poole (Chair) 
Councillor Michelline Safi Ngongo (Vice-
Chair) 
Councillor Rakhia Ismail 
 

All other members of the Licensing committee 

 
Quorum: is 3 Councillors 
 

 
Welcome :  Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  

Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 

1.  Introductions and procedure 
 

 

2.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.  Declarations of substitute members 
 

 

4.  Declarations of interest 
 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the 
discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you 
or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and 
the council. 

(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 

(e)  Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place 
of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 
 

 

5.  Order of Business 
 

 

6.  Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

1 - 14 

B.  
 

Items for Decision 
 

Page 

1.  House of Burger Bear, Magic Roundabout, Old Street Station, Unit 16 St Agnes 
Well, EC1Y 1BE 

15 - 92 



 
 
 

 

C.  
 

Urgent non-exempt items 
 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered 
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will 
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes. 
 
 

 

D.  
 

Exclusion of public and press 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the 
agenda, any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or 
confidential information within the terms of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the 
press and public during discussion thereof. 
 

 

E.  
 

Urgent Exempt Items (if any) 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently 
by reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be 
agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 
 



 
 
 

 
ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES -   
  
PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE  
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 

  
INTRODUCTION TIME 

GUIDE 
1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee, 
Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given 
permission to appear) to introduce themselves. 

 

  
2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as detailed 
below. 

 

  
CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:  
  
N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to present a 
summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report. 

 

  
3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or representations. 
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions. 

 

  
4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.  
  
6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points requested 
by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.  
  
8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify any 
points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.  
 
10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing Policy. 

 

 
11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of representations     
given above. 

 

 
CASE SUMMARIES 

 

  
12)  Responsible Authorities 2 
13)  Interested parties mins 
14)  Applicant each 
  

DELIBERATION AND DECISION  
 
15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee. 

 

 
16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification. 

 

 
17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing. 

 

 
 



 

1 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee A held at  the Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 
2UD on  28 September 2017 at 6.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Gary Poole (Chair for items B3 and B4)), Michelline 
Safi-Ngongo (Vice-Chair), Rakhia Ismail and Nick 
Wayne (Chair for items B1 and B2) 

   

 
Councillor Nick Wayne in the Chair 

 

 

183 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1) 
Councillor Nick Wayne welcomed everyone to the meeting and officers and members 
introduced themselves.  The procedure for the conduct of the meeting was outlined. 
 

184 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2) 
None. 
 
 

185 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3) 
Councillor Nick Wayne substituted for Councillor Gary Poole for agenda items B1 and B2 
only. 
 
 

186 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4) 
None. 
 
 

187 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5) 
The Chair advised all present that agenda item B5, an application for a variation to a 
premises licence for San Daniele Del Fruili, had been adjourned. 
 

188 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6) 
 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 August 2017 be confirmed as a correct record 
and the Chair be authorised to sign them. 
 
 

189 UNIT G7A, 6G ESTHER PLACE, LONDON, N1 1WL - PROVISIONAL STATEMENT 
APPLICATION (Item B1) 
 
The Licensing Officer pointed out that an amendment was required to page 10 of the 
agenda to reflect the fact that no representations had been received from local Ward 
councillors, rather than “Three local ward Councillors” as stated in the report. An 
amendment was also required to the final line of condition 2c on page 97 of the agenda by 
the deletion of the final sentence “Notwithstanding…….meal”. Conditions 16 – 18, detailed 
on page 98 of the agenda, and proposed by the Metropolitan Police, had been agreed by 

Page 1

Agenda Item A6



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

2 
 

the applicant. However, condition 19 had not been agreed.  He referred to the fact that a 
previous provisional statement application dating back to June 2017 had been withdrawn by 
the applicant prior to the Sub-Committee where it was to be determined. 
 
The Police representative added that the question mark in condition 18 should be replaced 
with “15% of the floor area” and that this had been agreed by the applicant. In addition, 
referring to condition 19 relating to a full half hour drinking up time, which the applicant had 
not agreed, a condition relating to drinking up time would be relevant and was a well 
established procedure. Drinking up time allowed a gradual exodus from a premises and 
prevented numbers of people leaving en masse. The premises was in a cumulative impact 
area, though no crime figures were available. 
 
The applicant’s representative noted that no written submission had been made by the 
Council’s Noise Team. 
 
The Licensing Authority’s representative highlighted the fact that the premises was situated 
in a cumulative impact area and that this had not been addressed in the application. There 
had been no attempt to address the Licensing Authority’s representations until this 
afternoon. Furthermore, the Licensing Authority did not think the application should be 
granted outside of planning consent hours ie 23:00 hours. The Licensing Authority 
supported the condition proposed by the Police for a drinking up time. 
 
The applicant’s representative noted that Councillor Poole had been due to chair this 
meeting.  He had not submitted a written representation and, if he was at this meeting to 
represent a resident, advance notice should have been given.  The Licensing Officer replied 
by saying that the Licensing Team had been made aware on the previous day that 
Councillor Poole would be speaking on behalf of local residents.  In response to a question 
from the Chair, the Legal Officer confirmed that there was no obstacle to Councillor Poole 
putting forward the representations of residents, but he could not make representations in a 
personal capacity.  In response to a question from the Chair, Councillor Poole confirmed 
that he was present to represent the views of residents. In response to a question from the 
applicant’s representative as to whether Sub-Committee members had discussed the 
matter with Councillor Poole, the Chair confirmed that there had been no such discussions 
and the only matter he had discussed with Councillor Poole was about the arrangements for 
chairing of the meeting. 
 
Councillor Poole, representing residents, stated that there was almost unprecedented 
community representation at this evening’s meeting, with around 30 local residents present. 
This spoke volumes for the fear of residents.  There was likely to be a significant increase in 
the impact on the community, if this application was granted. The applicant appeared to be 
riding roughshod over the cumulative impact area provision in the Council’s Licensing 
Policy. 
 
One of the residents stated that there was likely to be more noise and anti-social behaviour 
on Friday and Saturday nights if the application was granted. The area  
was already saturated. Licensing applications for this area were coming in frequently, 
including one for a premises called Humble Grape, which came through for consultation 
during the holiday period.   Under the Council’s Licensing Policy, applicants had to 
demonstrate why their application would not impact on the cumulative impact area and he 
could not see anything in the papers supplied to the Sub-Committee to this effect.  The area 
had reached saturation. Another resident said that this was a speculative appeal and that 
the area was already saturated with off licences. Another resident added that there was no 
justification for a new licence and that there would be added noise in the area and issues 
associated with dispersal of patrons from licensed premises.  The hours being sought 
should be reduced as there could be considerable noise in the mornings, with deliveries etc, 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

3 
 

if the premises were permitted to open at 8.00am.  It appeared that, as the application had 
progressed, it had changed to a bar by stealth. 
 
In response to a question from a member of the Sub-Committee, the Licensing Officer 
confirmed that off sales of alcohol had been removed from this application.  
 
The applicant’s representative stated that he had not replied to the Licensing Authority or 
the Police’s representations as he had been attending hospital appointments over the past 
month. However, addressing the representations received, the cumulative impact area 
issue had not been addressed in this application as it had been addressed in two previous 
applications.  The reason for the withdrawal of the application from a previous Sub-
Committee agenda was simply because they had overlooked the need to advertise their 
intention to apply for a licence in a local newspaper.  The capacity of the premises would be 
under 100 persons. The hours of operation were within the framework hours. If a condition 
was added to the licence for the sale of alcohol to cease half an hour before closing time to 
allow for drinking up, this would mean that the premises would have to close at 10.30pm.  
He maintained that the licence holder was bound by the hours granted by planning consent.  
 
He suggested that the addition of a condition for a 30 minute drinking up time, meaning the 
premises would close at 10.30pm, was artificially early for a restaurant, noting that a 
previous Sub-Committee had not imposed a condition to this effect. He suggested that the 
premises was an exception to the Cumulative Impact Area as it was within operating hours 
and was a restaurant. The conditions proposed by the applicant had been submitted with 
the application. An additional condition had been offered by the applicant “Entrance or exit 
from the premises after 20:00 hours on any day shall be from Upper Street only”. He could 
provide details of the potential users, but the conditions were more important. It was 
expected that the end user of the premises would be an Italian restaurant.  The premises 
would open for coffee and croissants at 8.00am.  Most of the other representations received 
related to planning issues and were not relevant for this meeting. 
 
A Member of the Sub-Committee asked the applicant’s representative what the premises 
operators would be bringing to the area.  The applicant’s representative said that the site 
was a former Post Office sorting office and that £400m had been spent by the developers 
on this mixed use scheme. There would be three restaurants in a small footprint.  Drinks 
would be served with meals in the restaurants and the opening hours were all within the 
Council’s framework hours.  He added that these matters had been addressed at a previous 
meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 
Another Member of the Sub-Committee asked about the applicant’s communication with 
residents, especially over possible noise nuisance.  The applicant’s representative said that, 
during the planning process, there had been consultation with residents and extensive 
correspondence.  This was a massive mixed use development and the addition of one small 
restaurant was unlikely to add to noise in the vicinity.  In response to a question as to how 
they would respond to complaints from residents about noise, the applicant’s representative 
said that the applicant would be happy to have lines of communication open and that the 
manager’s telephone number would be made available to residents and/or s/he could 
attend bi-annual meetings etc.  The applicant added that he had been involved in the 
planning of the development. There had been regular communications with residents and 
newsletters and this would continue to completion of the development.  There was a very 
small percentage of restaurants in this development compared to elsewhere, less than 10% 
in this development, compared to 30% in other developments. This was a managed 
development, with 24 hour security and CCTV. 
 
A member of the Sub-Committee pointed out that, on the first occasion when an application 
from this premises had been considered by the Sub-Committee, only two restaurants had 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

4 
 

been expected in the development. This application would bring the total up to three 
restaurants. Planning consent had been granted for operational hours up to 23:00 hours, 
seven days a week, and the new proposed terminal hour in this latest application was for 
midnight on Fridays and Saturdays, taking it outside the permitted hours under Planning 
consent. The Sub-Committee member queried why extended hours were being sought now.  
The applicant’s representative replied that, if it was thought appropriate at a future date, the 
applicant could apply to vary the planning consent to match framework hours. The Sub-
Committee member asked why this had not already been done, since they had already 
agreed a terminal hour of 23:00 hours with Planning.  The applicant’s representative said 
that it was something they were considering and they could apply at a future date.  The 
applicant pointed out that the operator of the premises was not actually in the premises yet 
and may not want extended hours.  The applicant’s representative said that they might 
consider applying for planning consent for later hours to match the licensing hours. The 
previous Sub-Committee had found the circumstances exceptional (to the Licensing Policy) 
and the applicant would not have applied now, if the previous application had not been 
granted. 
 
A member of the Sub-Committee noted that there was no tenant in the premises yet. He 
asked the applicant’s representative to address the cumulative impact area issues raised in 
the Licensing Authority’s representation and asked why he maintained that there would be 
no adverse impact by virtue of an additional premises having an alcohol licence in this 
development. 
 
The applicant’s representative said that most Licensing Policies disregarded the quality of a 
premises operator, since they could change. This was a small premises, where patrons 
would be seated, it would be food lead, with alcohol ancillary, was already controlled 
through CCTV and was unlikely to add to the cumulative impact area. They were not 
applying to run a bar. 
 
A member of the Sub-Committee referred to the Police’s representation relating to the 
proposed addition of a drinking up time and asked the applicant’s representative whether he 
considered the ordering of last drinks by a certain time to allow for the closing of the 
premises at the terminal hour a good idea?  The applicant’s representative agreed that this 
would be a good idea for the bar.  He would press for a 15 minute drinking up time if 
necessary.   The Licensing Officer had asked him why they had not applied for a terminal 
licensing hour of 23:30, if they wanted to close at 23:00 hours, but the applicant’s 
representative said that they it would not be possible to do this since the terminal hour 
under Planning consent was 23:00 hours. 
 
The Police representative suggested a compromise of a 20 minute drinking up time. The 
Licensing Officer suggested that, if no more than 100 people were permitted on the 
premises, condition 6 could be amended to permit no more than 10 smokers outside the 
premises at any one time. 
 
A residents’ representative noted that the access on Studd and Moon Streets would not be 
physically closed and queried who would stop people going into the restaurant.  It was not 
workable. The cumulative impact area issues were not retrospective. This premises were in 
the Angel and Upper Street Cumulative Impact Area and there had been no attempt by the 
applicant to state why this application could be considered exceptional.  Neither was it 
appropriate to consider the decision of the Sub-Committee which had last considered this.  
There had been nothing from the licensee about the possible impact on residents’ lives. 
 
The applicant’s representative asked the Sub-Committee to consider this application on its 
merits. A restaurant operating within framework hours would not add to the cumulative 

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

5 
 

impact on the area. The premises were not alcohol lead and he maintained that there would 
be zero impact on the community if the application was granted. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the application for a provisional statement in respect of Unit G7A, 6G Esther Anne 
Place, London, N1 1WL be granted to allow: 
 

1) The on- sale of alcohol, from 10 am until 10.40pm, Monday to Sunday.  
.   
2) Opening hours to be from 8am until 11pm from Monday to Sunday 

 
Conditions detailed on pages 97 and 98 of the agenda shall be applied to the licence, 
subject to the following: 
Condition 2b  – add “non-alcoholic” before the word “drink” 
Condition 2c – delete words in final sentence “Notwithstanding……..their meal” 
Delete condition 3 

Condition 6 – amend to read “ No more than 10 people shall be permitted to smoke,,,,,” 
Condition 18 -  amend line 2 after the word “of” to read “ up to a maximum at any one time 
of 15% of the approved capacity, or a maximum of 15 people. 
 
Condition 19 – amend to read “The sale of alcohol will cease 20 minutes before closing time 
to allow for drinking up”  
 
Plus two new conditions – add: 
-Clear signage to be displayed on the outside and inside of the premises, providing 
telephone contact details (land line and mobile telephone numbers) and email addresses of 
the manager of the development and the operator of the premises  
-The capacity of the premises to be limited to a maximum of 100 people 

REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 2.  The premises fall within the 
Angel and Upper Street cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 2 creates a rebuttable 
presumption that applications for new premises licences that are likely to add to the existing 
cumulative impact will normally be refused, unless an applicant can demonstrate why the 
operation of the premises involved will not add to the cumulative impact or otherwise impact 
adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 6 which states that  
the Licensing Authority expects applicants to ensure that they have planning consent for the 
intended hours of operation before making an application for a premises licence. The 
Licensing Authority will only grant licences for premises without planning consent in 
exceptional circumstances.  The Sub-Committee noted that the applicant had approved A3 
use for the premises which shall not operate under the conditions of the planning 
authorisation except between the hours of 08:00 and 23:00 on any day. 
 

Page 5



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

6 
 

The Sub-Committee noted that the application was for on sales only and the representation 
from the Licensing Authority that drinking up time should be within the hours authorised by 
the Planning authority. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the representations from the interested parties and their 
concerns about the proximity of the premises to residential dwellings. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the indication from the applicant that the capacity of the 
premises would be up to 100 patrons and that the premises would not be alcohol –led. The 
Sub-Committee noted that the applicant was willing to accept a condition limiting the 
capacity of the premises. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that there had been discussions between the Police and the 
applicant and that the Police were willing to accept a 20 minutes drinking up time for the 
whole restaurant. 
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that the premises were not likely to add to the existing 
cumulative impact on the basis that the terminal hour for the operation of the premises 
would be 23:00 hours. By imposing a condition restricting the capacity of the premises and 
on the basis that the premises would be food led, the Sub-Committee decided to make an 
exception in accordance with Licensing Policy 2. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee concluded that the premises would not impact adversely on 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. The arrangements made by the management for 
the development for exit onto Upper Street after 20:00hours and the introduction of a 
drinking up time to allow for dispersal form the premises would promote the licensing 
objectives to prevent public nuisance and crime and disorder. 
 
In accordance with Licensing Policy 6, the applicant failed to demonstrate any exceptional 
circumstances as to why the Sub-Committee should grant hours of operation beyond the 
planning consent. 
 
The conditions imposed on the licence were reasonable and proportionate and would 
ensure that the licensing objectives were promoted. 
 
 

190 DIRTY MARTINI, 74 UPPER STREET, N1 0NY - PREMISES LICENCE VARIATION 
 (Item B2) 
 
The Licensing Officer reported that, since the report had been written, the Noise Officer had 
withdrawn proposed conditions on pages 162 and 163 of the agenda.  The Noise Officer 
drew attention to the fact that her suggested amendment to condition 4 on page 163 should 
actually be an amendment to existing noise condition 3 (page 162). 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that no representation had been received from the Police. 
 
The Licensing Authority’s representative drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the fact that 
the premises was located in a cumulative impact area. 
 
A local Ward councillor, representing residents, stated that he had made a written 
representation, which had been circulated with the agenda, He said that residents were 
most concerned about this application to extend hours in premises in a sensitive part of St 
Mary’s Ward. Local residents and the community lived precariously. The difficult history of 
the previous premises had eroded the welllbeing and safety of residents. The attempt made 
by the applicant to rebut the assumptions associated with the premises being located in a 

Page 6



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

7 
 

cumulative impact area was valiant, but did not rebut the concerns about the additional 
hours being sought. 
 
In response to a question from the applicant’s representative, the Licensing Officer 
confirmed that a resident who had submitted a written representation had authorised his 
flatmate to speak on his behalf. This resident described the geography of the site, 
describing it as a unique place, with St Alban’s Place forming a tunnel through from Upper 
Street.  He described the area as “already unsafe” and that an extension in operating hours 
would increase the numbers of people in the vicinity and anti-social behaviour.  Another 
resident said how dismayed she was to see this new application, having spent two years 
complaining about the activities of the former premises.  The proposed change from 
midnight to 2.00am made this a club.  Residents had to listen to a lot of noise at weekends. 
Even though security staff were present, there appeared to be no change in the volume of 
anti-social behaviour. 
 
The applicant’s representative stated that the premises were an example of how  a 
cumulative impact policy worked and would work into the future.  The previous operator had 
been removed and a sympathetic operator was now in place.  The applicant had traded at 
the premises over the  past 17 months, including a number of TENS, without any 
complaints. When the cumulative impact policy had been introduced into Islington’s 
Licensing Policy, the premises had been open until 2.00am on Thursday, Friday and 
Saturday without adding to the cumulative impact in the area.  He added that the current 
and proposed operation of the premises would not impact on the local area. There were no 
Police representations, which was remarkable, given the previous history of the premises 
and crime statistics for the area.  In response to representations from residents about the 
likelihood of more people being drawn to the area, he said that entry to the premises would 
be restricted after midnight. People would be able to stay in Dirty Martini and would not 
have to migrate to other premises, keeping them in this safe environment.  A dispersal 
policy was in action. The applicant had also agreed additional conditions  to restrict capacity 
after 1.00am and to employ additional SIA supervisors on Fridays and Saturday nights. An 
existing condition on the licence, condition 3 on page 154 of the agenda, made it the sole 
responsibility of one of the SIA supervisors to control the entrance to St Alban’s Place and 
to ensure the prohibition of smoking in the entrance to St Alban’s Place. 
 
The applicant stated that he took on board residents’ complaints. On taking over the 
premises, he had contacted the Police and local residents. The rear lane was patrolled by 
SIA supervisors attached to the premises and had improved and impacted on crime 
reduction.  More people would not be attracted to the premises or area as it would be clear 
that there would be no entry after midnight.  Security staff remained until all patrons had left 
the premises. 
 
The applicant’s representative reiterated that the Police had not submitted a representation 
and that the Noise Team had withdrawn their representation. He noted that the Licensing 
Authority’s representation on page 160 of the agenda included some positive comments 
about the lack of complaints about the premises.  He noted that the Chief Executive Officer 
at the premises had written to Councillor Poole in response to his representations about the 
premises and to the residents but had received no response.  The concerns expressed by 
residents were understandable given the historical problems with the previous premises. 
However, there had been no complaints under the new operators. He noted that one of the 
resident representations claimed that it would be unlawful for the Council to agree this 
variation and that the verbal representations by another resident related to the historical 
operation of the premises.  Other residents who had made representations lived further 
away.  He asked the Sub-Committee to make their decision based on the evidence of the 
track record of the applicant.  He highlighted the independent reports from Adrian Studd, an 
independent licensing consultant, and RBA Acoustics, in relation to the proposed variation, 

Page 7



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

8 
 

both of which had based their reports on the misunderstanding that the variation to extend 
hours to 2.00am was for Thursday to Saturdays, when  in fact the variation was actually for 
Friday and Saturday only. Nevertheless, both reports suggested that the new operation of 
the premises was unlikely to impact on the cumulative impact and Adrian Studd had stated 
that “..there are features of the operation of this premises that do make it exceptional”. The 
conditions applied to the licence would address any concerns about noise and the control of 
people in the area. 
 
A member of the Sub-Committee asked about the applicant’s social corporate responsibility. 
The applicant stated that they worked with the Police and had attempted to work with the 
neighbours to these premises. They ran a bar in Covent Garden, with residents living 
above, with whom they discussed concerns. They made themselves available 24/7 and 
aimed to do the same here.  Regular communication was key. 
 
A member of the Sub-Committee asked for an example of how the operators worked with 
local residents.  The applicant cited an example of their premises in Covent Garden, which 
had six apartments above, valued from £2m to £6m.  One of the residents of one of the 
apartments had complained about noise and, in response, the operators had employed a 
sound technician to identify the source of the noise.  It transpired that the noise emanated 
from another apartment. 
 
A member of the Sub-Committee commented that Islington residents tended to live side-by-
side.  She noted that Covent Garden was an affluent area. She asked whether local people 
were employed by the operators.  The applicant replied that they operated premises in 
areas such as Cardiff and Clapham and worked with neighbours, with no regard for 
monetary wealth of local residents.  The important thing was how everyone could live 
together. The applicant confirmed that locals were employed in their premises. 
 
A member of the Sub-Committee asked if the premises was a bar, not exclusively table 
service, and with some vertical drinking? He also asked if there was a condition attached to 
the licence which precluded vertical drinking after midnight.  The applicant confirmed that 
there was not such a condition.  The applicant was asked the purpose of the TEN on 3 June 
2017. The applicant said that it was not for a particular event, but just to extend hours.  The 
member of the Sub-Committee queried whether that event had been for the pre-publicised 
event and the applicant’s representative confirmed that it had not.  A further question was 
asked of the applicant about how events involving extended hours were publicised.  The 
applicant said that these types of events were held over Christmas, birthday parties and 
other special occasions.  They never worked with promoters. 
 
A member of the Sub-Committee queried whether a different clientele might come to  Dirty 
Martini after midnight from other premises, especially if they knew that the premises would 
be open until 2.00am.  The applicant’s representative said that there had been no 
complaints on the occasions when TENs had operated at the premises and the applicant 
was not seeking to attract people to the premises after midnight. The applicant’s 
representative replied that those types of people were seeking out later-licensed premises 
and reiterated that there had been no complaints during the times when TENs had operated 
at the premises.  The Sub-Committee member suggested that if an area had a cluster of 
late night premises, people would be more likely to go there. The applicant’s representative 
said that the operator was not seeking additional customers but to allow them to stay on 
after 1.00am.  The applicant added that they operated a strict door policy and there would 
be no guarantee that people arriving up to midnight would be allowed in. 
 
In summary, one of the residents maintained that there had been no outreach to neighbours 
of the premises and that she had received a letter from them only in the previous week.  
They were not sympathetic to the needs of their neighbours and promoted events at the 

Page 8



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

9 
 

premises widely. She was on their mailing list.  She maintained that there would be an 
increase in crime and anti-social behaviour if hours were extended. 
 
The applicant’s representative congratulated the Council on its Cumulative Impact Policy. 
However, to moved forward, it was important to recognise that, if this variation was agreed, 
it would encourage improvement in the local area and for local residents. If the variation 
application was agreed under the Council’s Licensing Policy and with the evidence 
submitted, it was “not likely” to add to the cumulative impact in the area. There had been no 
complaints when TENs had operated in the premises and the noise report from RBA 
Acoustics and Adrian Studd, the independent licensing consultant, confirmed this. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 

That the application for a premises licence variation in respect of Dirty Martini, 74 Upper 
Street, London, N1 0NY, be refused. 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all of the evidence and submissions and read all the 
material. The Sub-Committee reached their decision having given consideration to the 
Licensing Act 2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the 
Council’s Licensing Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 2.  The premises fall within the 
Angel and Upper Street cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 2 created a rebuttable 
presumption that applications for new premises licences that were likely to add to the 
existing cumulative impact would normally be refused, unless an applicant can demonstrate 
why the operation of the premises involved would not add to the cumulative impact or 
otherwise impact adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the supporting evidence set out in the Licensing Policy for the 
Angel and Upper Street area. The Sub-Committee noted that the area still featured as a late 
night alcohol related crime and disorder hotspot. The Sub-Committee further noted that it 
was recorded that the area had reached saturation and any further expansion in the night 
time economy should not adversely affect the quality of life for residents. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the interested parties how licensable activities in 
the area of the premises eroded safety and quality of life for residents. The Sub-Committee 
noted representations that there would be a huge difference on the impact to residents if 
licensable activities were extended to 02:00 hours.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the reports of Adrian Studd, independent licensing consultant, 
and RBA Acoustics. The Sub-Committee also noted that the Police had not made a 
representation and that the applicant had offered up a number of additional conditions. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the evidence of the applicant that there would be vertical 
drinking at the premises after midnight and continuing until 02:00 hours. The Sub-
Committee were particularly concerned that this would lead to more intensive drinking in the 
cumulative impact area and that this would undermine the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that an extension of the hours of operation would lead to a 
cluster of late night venues in this part of the cumulative impact area. The Sub-Committee 
noted the proposed condition from the applicant that there would be no entry, or re-entry, to 

Page 9



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

10 
 

the premises after midnight and the submission from the applicant that they were not 
looking to attract new customers into the cumulative impact area after midnight. 
 
However, the Sub-Committee were concerned that patrons would arrive at the premises 
shortly before midnight and that there would therefore be increased footfall and an 
additional impact in the cumulative impact area. 
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that an extension of the hours of operation and the 
extended availability of alcohol for sale within the cumulative impact area would see an 
increase in public nuisance and impact on the promotion of the crime and disorder 
objective. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that no complaints had been received when the premises 
operated TENS, but the Sub-Committee were of the view that the proposed extended hours 
would add to the existing cumulative impact and would impact adversely on the promotion 
of the licensing objectives. The applicant failed to rebut the assumption that applications will 
normally be refused unless the applicant can demonstrate that there will be no adverse 
cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 
 
Councillor Gary Poole was in the chair for consideration of the following two items. 
 

191 RUNWAY EAST, GROUND FLOOR, 19-23 FEATHERSTONE STREET, EC1Y 8SL - NEW 
PREMISES LICENCE (Item B3) 
 
The Licensing Officer reported that the roof area had been removed from the premises 
licence application and that the Noise and Planning Teams had consequently withdrawn 
their representations. 
 
A resident said that there were no licensed premises opening onto Featherstone Street and 
that it should be kept that way.  The premises were serviced offices, though he recognised 
that they had alcohol at events in the building. Given that the premises were situated in a 
licence free zone in a Cumulative Impact Area, with no other licensed premises in the 
street, it should stay that way and he could see no reason for them to have a licence. If, 
however, the application was granted, he hoped that an amendment to condition 16 could 
be considered to clarify that alcoholic drinks should not be taken away from the common 
area in the members’ lounge on the ground floor. Another resident said that, if the licence 
was granted, she would agree with the proposed conditions which would help to ensure less 
noise nuisance from the  back of the premises and  that driveways were not blocked by 
delivery vans. Another resident said that the application was more like one for a private club 
and it should therefore be for members only.  The proposed hours were excessive and 
would have an adverse impact on the local school and on her flat in particular.  There would 
be problems with noise, odour control and safety. The proposed opening hours were 
excessive. She added that the hours on the original premises licence were 08:00 to 22:00 
hours on Monday to Friday, 08:00 to 12:00 noon on Saturdays and closure on Sundays and 
bank holidays. Regarding the proposed conditions, there should be no use of vehicle bays, 
or the rear yard, other than for logistics. There should be no smoking in those areas either.  
ASB and drug dealing was taking place on the private curtilage of the premises and there 
should therefore be more CCTV. 
 
A member of the Committee asked residents whether there had been any outreach by the 
applicant.  One of the residents said that they had been contacted by the applicant only 
three to four days ago and had met with the applicant on the previous day. 
 
The applicant stated that the premises would be a female founders club, aiming to support 
women to build companies. The licence was needed for seven days, to support a wide 

Page 10



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

11 
 

range of women, some of whom had work commitments and/or mothers taking children to 
and from school. The applicant agreed with the proposed change to condition 16 but 
pointed out that the back of the driveway was owned by the landlord and not within their 
control.  She was aware of the congestion caused by deliveries to the premises, but building 
work would be coming to an end in the forthcoming month and vehicles would then be able 
to turn left into Mallow Street. There was good security of the premises and security staff 
had been instructed to move drug dealers away from the premises. The applicant did not 
propose to run a bar at any hour on the premises, merely when there was a networking 
event taking place. These events would be occasional and ancillary to the business.  There 
had been no issues since February. Approximately 100 businesses were being supported, 
generating 300 extra jobs.  Their aim was to foster business relations. 
   
A member of the Committee asked for clarification on the applicant’s business model, with 
the aim being the establishment of a female founders club, which would be for members 
only.  He queried whether access to the bar would be for members only, whether members 
could invite guests and whether external parties could rent space in the building. He asked 
whether the applicants were surprised at the number (21) of resident representations to the 
licence application.  The applicant said that members could host an event at the premises 
but would have to provide a guest list, which could be checked off as guests arrived.  She 
added that she was not surprised about  the number of representations, though many were 
about the roof.  She understood residents’ concerns and would be happy to show them 
around the premises and explain the business plan. 
 
A member of the Sub-Committee noted that the applicant had only very recently contacted 
local residents about their proposals and pointed out that this should have happened much 
sooner. The applicant stated that a letter had been sent to residents on the previous 
Monday. In response to a question from another member of the Sub-Committee about the 
possible vulnerability of women using the premises, with anti-social behaviour in the vicinity, 
the applicant said that women were using the premises already and there was no issue. 
She added that the 300 extra jobs generated from business supported at these premises 
were across London and not just in Islington.  In response to a further  question about 
possible nuisance caused by taxis arriving at the premises to transport patrons, the 
applicant pointed out that not everyone would be leaving at once and patrons would be 
advised of the best pick up points. 
 
One of the residents said that he was surprised to learn of the focus on women’s events at 
the premises, since this had not been specified in the application or on the applicant’s 
website. He would prefer not to see extended hours and could not see a necessity for 
networking events to go on later than 22:00 hours. 
 
In response to a question about the necessity for licensed hours from Monday to Sunday, 
the applicant acknowledged that they could manage Monday to Friday and, in response to 
residents’ concerns about the late licensing hours being sought, conceded  a revision of 
midday to 22:00 hours for the supply of alcohol at the premises.  Outside bookings were 
limited to persons known by the applicants.  
 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the application for a new premises licence in respect of Runway East, Ground Floor, 
19-23 Featherstone Street, London, EC1Y 8SL, be granted: 

1) To supply alcohol for consumption on the premises from 12 noon until 10pm, 
Monday to Friday.   

2) Opening hours to be:-  8am to midnight, Monday to Sunday.    
 

Page 11



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

12 
 

Conditions detailed on pages 257 and 258 of the agenda shall be applied to the licence, 
subject to the following amendments: 
 
Condition 2 – add “and the licensee will not accept any outside bookings, external to the 
membership” 
Condition 16 – amend to read “Alcoholic and other drinks purchased from the premises 
shall not be taken away from the licensed area of the ground floor” 
 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 2.  The premises fall within the 
Bunhill cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 2 creates a rebuttable presumption that 
applications for new premises licences that are likely to add to the existing cumulative 
impact will normally be refused, unless an applicant can demonstrate why the operation of 
the premises involved will not add to the cumulative impact or otherwise impact adversely 
on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the representations from residents, in particular their concern 
that the premises would operate seven days a week and that there would be an opportunity 
for the public to purchase alcohol from the premises. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the amended conditions that the applicant was willing to accept 
in relation to the hours of operation, that licensable activity would only take place on 
Monday to Friday, that drinks purchased would not be taken outside the licensed area and 
that there would be no outside bookings.  
 
The Sub-Committee decided that in view of the concessions made at the hearing, there 
would be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives and that the licence 
would be granted, subject to the agreed conditions. 
 
 

192 BREWHOUSE AND KITCHEN, 2A CORSICA STREET, N5 1JD - LICENCE VARIATION 
(Item B4) 
 
The Licensing Officer stated that two further conditions had been agreed by the applicant. 
These related to the windows which were closest to residential properties being sealed and 
no installation of speakers in the corridor. In addition, he noted that planning consent 
permitted opening until 24:00 hours and this application, seeking the proposed sale of 
alcohol up to 01:00 hours, exceeded this consent. 
 
The applicant’s representative said that the planning consent had been inherited. He noted 
that there had been no representations from the Responsible Authorities. He stated that he 
and the applicant had met with two local resident objectors and had written to them.  The 
applicant had agreed concessions, confirmed in an email to the Licensing Authority, 
confirming that the windows of the premises which were nearest to residents, and currently 
only open to provide access to plant as and when it needed servicing, would be closed and 
sealed.  In addition, he said that no speakers had been installed in the corridor, so there 
would be no requirement for any control measures to be put in place with regard to music in 
this area. 

Page 12



Licensing Sub Committee A -  28 September 2017 
 

13 
 

 
In addition, he conceded that the operating hours on the first floor of the premises would be 
restricted to midnight to comply with planning consent. 
 
RESOLVED: 

That the application for a premises licence variation in respect of Brewhouse and Kitchen, 
2A Corsica Street, N5 1JD, be granted: 

1) To vary the layout of the premises to add the area specified on the first floor of the 
premises. 

2) To vary the layout of the premises to include creating a bar, meeting and events 
space on the first floor. 

3) To vary the premises licence so that the hours of operation on the first floor are 
restricted to 9am to midnight every day 

Conditions detailed on page 295   to be amended as set out below and applied to the 
licence: 

1. As per current licence 

2. The two windows that are closest to residential property to be sealed  
3  No installation of speakers in the corridor to ensure that there is no noise from 
music in this area. 
 

REASONS FOR DECISION 
 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the applicant’s response to issues raised by the interested 
parties and that they had indicated that the two windows closest to the residential property 
would be sealed and that there would be no speakers positioned in the corridor.  The Sub-
Committee noted that the applicant accepted that the hours of operation on the first floor 
should be restricted to be in line with the planning permission. 

 
The Sub-Committee decided that, in accordance with Licensing Policy 18, the applicant had 
proposed appropriate restrictions to prevent undue noise disturbance and it was therefore 
reasonable and proportionate to grant the variation with the proposed conditions. 
 
 

193 SAN DANIELE DEL FRUILI, 72 HIGHBURY PARK, N5 2XE - PREMISES LICENCE 
VARIATION (Item B5) 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that this application had been withdrawn. 
 
 
The meeting ended at 10.05 pm 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15

Agenda Item B1



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	B1 House of Burger Bear, Magic Roundabout, Old Street Station, Unit 16 St Agnes Well, EC1Y 1BE

